LAKE WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

10604 NE 38th Place, Suite 212 KIRKLAND, WA 98033 425-822-3388

BYLAWS

Article I Our Purpose as members of the Lake Washington Education Association (LWEA) is to support, encourage, and promote each other in our efforts to provide quality equitable public education.

Goals:

- Advocate for all members' legal, professional, contractual, and human rights.
- Recognize the impact of systemic racism and respond by becoming an anti-racist and bias-aware community.
- Be an integral part of equitable educational decisions with the Lake Washington School District (LWSD) and the Lake Washington School Board.
- Promote and support educators to take ownership and be leaders in creating equitable public education.
- Educate our members on issues of systemic racism, equity, and equitable teaching.
- Promote the professional growth of members.
- Foster increased community support for and involvement in equitable public education.
- Provide timely, transparent communication through multiple platforms between LWEA membership and leadership.
- Develop and utilize Competency Teams to support the purpose and goals of LWEA.

Article II LWEA Membership

- Section 1 Enrollment blanks embodying the unified plan of membership shall be furnished by the WEA.
- Section 2 There shall be the following classes of membership in the LWEA:

Active Membership shall be open to any holder of a Washington State Teaching Certificate or an Educational Staff Associate Certificate who is either under contract to or substituting within the Lake Washington School District, agrees to sign a membership application and pay unified dues, and shall be open to the president or other released time officer of the Association. Membership shall be exclusive of those who have final authority to evaluate members.

Active Half Time shall be available to anyone who is eligible for active membership, and who is able to present proof of one-half (1/2) time employment with the District or less.

<u>Reserve Membership</u> shall be limited to any person who is otherwise eligible for active membership but is on limited leave or absence from professional educational work in the Lake Washington School District.

<u>Student Membership</u> shall be limited to any person who is not certified as and/or employed as an educator, but who is enrolled in a college or university program that results in an internship in the District.

Retired Membership shall be limited to any person who has retired from teaching or other educational work.

<u>Associate Membership</u> shall be limited to any person (such as teacher aide) not eligible for other classes of membership and not engaged actively in the education profession.

Staff Membership shall be open to any person employed by the Association.

Section 3 Continuing membership shall be subject to discontinuance in the case of any member whose dues are not paid by January 1, or who has not authorized the deductions of such dues installments thereof.

Section 4 Membership may be terminated by expulsion or suspension or a member may be censured in accordance with the LWEA Constitution for a violation of the Code of Ethics, or for refusing to abide by the LWEA Constitution and Bylaws.

Article III LWEA Dues and Assessments

Section 1 Dues shall be adjusted to the nearest whole dollar as follows:

Active Members: .007 of the preceding school year's beginning teacher's salary plus Program and WEA dues. Program and WEA dues adjustments are subject to approval by a majority vote of the LWEA Representative Assembly.

Active Half-Time Members: One-half (1/2) dues for active members.

<u>Substitute Teachers</u>: For those who present proof as substitute teachers, dues shall be proportional on a daily basis to the dues for active members.

Reserve Members: One-half (1/2) of the dues for active members for those persons on a Leave of Absence, and \$5.00 for those persons on Temporary Disability or Maternity/Child Care Leaves or other hardship leaves upon written request and approval of the Executive Committee.

Retired Members: No dues payable.

Associate Members: One-half (1/2) of the dues of active members.

Staff Members: One-half (1/2) of the dues of active members.

Agency Shop Members: Equal to dues of active members.

Section 2 Special assessments may be levied by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Representative Assembly.

Section 3 The state and national dues of all members shall be payable to -WEA.

Section 4 Local and Council dues and special assessments shall be collected by the WEA on behalf of the LWEA.

Article IV LWEA Representative Assembly

Section 1 Delegates to the Representative Assembly shall be elected by secret ballot after open nominations at each work site at a 1:15 ratio. The Executive Committee shall provide uniform rules and procedures to assure compliance with the Constitution and Bylaws of

the LWEA, WEA and NEA, including those applicable provisions relative to one-personone-vote, and ethnic-minority representation.

Section 2 Members of the Executive Committee will be ex-officio voting members of the Representative Assembly. The president (or vice president in his/her absence) as presiding officer will vote only in the event of a tie.

Section 3 Special interest groups as listed in Article V, Section 2 may elect ex-officio non-voting delegates to the LWEA Representative Assembly at a 1:15 ration, or major fraction thereof.

Article V LWEA Executive Committee

Section 1 Executive Committee members shall consist of the officers of LWEA and one (1) representative from each of the following areas: Primary (Grades K-2), Intermediate (Grades 3-5), Middle School, High School, Special Services, Specialists, and Ethnic Minority.

Alternative schools/programs will be represented on the Executive Committee by the appropriate grade level representative.

Section 2 The definition of Special Services shall include certificated members who are employed in the following areas or classification:

Safety Net Psychologists

SLP Special Ed Teacher

OT/PT Preschool Vision Specialist ELL

The definition of Specialist shall include certificated members who are employed in the following classifications:

Counselor Librarian

Elementary Music Elementary Physical Education Educational Specialist Professional Development

Section 3 The Executive Committee members representing each of the categories shall be from their own category. Except for those Executive Committee members elected to fill vacancies, newly elected Executive Committee members shall take office after the NEA Representative Assembly. Executive Committee members shall not serve as Building Reps except in emergency situations when authorized by the president.

Section 4 Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held in accordance with action of the Executive Committee or on call of the president or on request of a majority of the Executive Committee.

Section 5 Executive Committee members shall be elected by majority vote (50% + 1 of those qualified and voting) of a secret ballot following open nominations. In the event that no candidate receives a majority, the two (2) candidates receiving the most votes shall be in a runoff election. If a runoff election is necessary, it shall be held according to a timeline prepared by the Executive Committee and ballots shall be counted not later than one (1) month after the end of the previous election.

Section 5.1 President and Vice President will serve for a three-year term, with a maximum of two terms. If the end of the term falls on the year of a contract negotiation or the first year of a

new contract the term may be extended for a max of two years upon approval of the Representative Assembly. All other positions on the Executive Committee will serve one-year terms. There will be no term limits.

- Section 5.2 Each officer shall be elected by the same procedure as in Section 5. All other positions on the Executive Committee will serve one-year terms. There will be no term limits.
- Section 5.3 Delegates to the State and National Representative Assemblies will be elected each year.
- Section 6 The Lake Washington Education Association President will concurrently by the president of the Lake Washington Council and will sit on the Washington Education Association Board of Directors.
- Section 7 The LWEA president shall appoint a member of the LWEA Executive Committee to serve as a WEA Board Alternate in event of the president's absence.

Article VI LWEA Committees and Commissions

- Section 1 All Committees and Commissions members, except the LWEA Budget Committee and LWEA Elections Committee, shall be appointed by the president, except that the president-designate shall appoint members who will take office during his/her term as president.
- Section 2 Committee and Commission members are expected to be active members of the Committees or Commissions to which they are appointed. Non-participation of a member or failure to attend three (3) consecutive meetings shall constitute that member's resignation when so determined by the president.
- Section 3 Committees and Commissions shall receive their charges from the president, as approved by the Executive Committee.
- Section 4 A majority of all members of any Committee or Commission shall constitute a quorum.
- Section 5 All reports to be made for consideration of the Representative Assembly should be submitted in final form to the Executive Committee not later than two (2) weeks before the meeting of the Representative Assembly. All reports should be mailed to the buildings and authorized Representative Assembly delegates not later than one (1) week before the meeting of the Representative Assembly. Committees and Commissions should make interim reports to the Executive Committee.
- Section 6 Committee and Commission recommendations and/or endorsements, in order to become Association policy, must be approved by majority vote of the Representative Assembly.
- An elections committee consisting of three (3) LWEA building reps will be elected by the LWEA Representative Assembly each year. The elections committee will elect a chair from within the committee. The committee's responsibilities shall include the development of campaign and elections guidelines, oversight of the elections process, and certification of the election results. The LWEA Executive Committee shall approve the election committee's guidelines and process. The LWEA President shall appoint one member of the Executive Committee other than their-self to serve as a liaison to the elections committee.

Article VII Ratification of Negotiated Agreements

- Section 1 Agreements will be ratified through a secret ballot vote by members at worksites. Such vote will take place following a general membership meeting at which the terms of the agreement are presented and members are given an opportunity for discussion and debate.
- Section 2 Agreements will be considered ratified when accepted by a simple majority of the members voting.
- Section 3 Any Letters of Understanding become effective when ratified by the Executive Committee and/or the Representative Assembly.
- Section 4 Authorization for a strike shall require a simple majority of those present at a meeting called for said purpose.

Article VIII WEA and NEA Delegates

Section 1 The Elections Committee shall set the election procedures for each delegate position to the NEA Representative Assembly and the WEA Representative Assembly. The election for the delegates shall be in compliance with the NEA/WEA guidelines.

Article IX LWEA Employed Staff

Section 1 The Executive Committee shall employ or contract for the employment of the UniServ Representative and upon recommendation of the UniServ Representative, shall employ other personnel.

Article X Fiscal Policy

- A budget committee consisting of three (3) LWEA building reps will be elected by the LWEA Representative Assembly each year. The budget committee will be chaired by a member of the LWEA Executive Committee nominated by the president and confirmed by a majority vote of the Exec Committee. The committee's responsibilities shall include giving input on the development of the LWEA budget, oversight of expenditures, and oversight of the annual audit.
- Section 2 The preparation of the preliminary budget and the final budget shall be the responsibility of the president and the Chair of the budget committee. The preliminary budget shall be submitted to the Executive Committee no later than the September Executive Committee meeting. The final budget shall be submitted by the Executive Committee to the Representative Assembly for approval no later than the October Representative Assembly meeting.
- Section 3 All monies received by the LWEA shall be placed and kept in such accounts as the Executive Committee shall determine and shall be disbursed by such officers and in such manner as the Executive Committee shall determine.

Article XI Amendments

Section 1 These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the Representative Assembly by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all official delegates present and voting, provided the amendment has been printed and distributed prior to the meeting.